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courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Recorder's Office -~ Isanti County Courthouse

street & number 237 SW 2nd Ave.

Cambridge , state Minmnesota

city, town

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Statewide Survey of Historic
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city, town St, Paul ' state Minnesota
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This Multiple Resource Area Nomination is based on a survey of standing
structures conducted in Isanti County by the Minnesota State Historic Preservation
Office as part of a long-range statewide survey of historic resources, The
properties included in the nomination represent those which illustrate significant
aspects of the history of the county and which have been deemed eligible for
nomination at the conclusion of the survey. Additional information and new
perspectives for evaluation of specific types of historic properties are con-
tinually being gained as the statewide survey progresses, and it is quite possible
that additional Isanti County properties will be nominated in the future. These
may be presented individually or as parts of thematic groups when the entire
survey is completed., For this reason, this Multiple Resource Area Nomination
should not be construed as representing all properties in Isanti County eligible
for nomination.

(The above disclaimer is based on an agreement between Charles Herrington, HCRS,
and Russell Fridley, Minnesota SHPO, August 31, 1979,)



ISANTI COUNTY

The basis of the survey for this nomination is an inventory of
structures which are indicative of various aspects of the county's
history., Structures were identified and inventoried during a
county wide survey conducted during the late summer and fall of 1979,

Selection of structures for the inventory included both field
reconnaissance of pre-identified sites and isolation of sites on a
purely visual basis. Pre-identification of sites was limited to a
small number of the most significant locations (those unique on a
county wide scale, or significantly linked with some aspect of county
history.) County histories, individual community histories, and
photographs from both the state society and private collections were
researched for site-specific information., General references to
common buildings were not noted,

Township maps from the 1914 Isanti County Atlas were copied for
field use, Plat maps on file in the county recorder's office were
researched for original plat information (proprietors, survey and
filing dates) and for additional dates. The filing dates for the
various platted areas were noted on current highway department city maps.
This collection of maps was useful in gaining a localized sense of
development for areas of the county.

All city streets were walked or driven, All rural non-farm
structures, pre-identified sites, and locally suggested buildings
were visited., The roads connecting these dispersed sites provided a
strong sampling of the rural landscape., Pre-identified sites were
inventoried regardless of integrity. Other buildings with unusual
integrity or unique features were also inventoried. 1In general,
structures built before 1940 were considered for an inventory.

Follow-up information (both localized specific and generalized
contextual) on some sites was gathered to help establish significance.

In each region of the county, at least one and in most cases
several local contacts were made through the county historical society
and by random inquiry. These were most often helpful in locating
information on selected properties, but also in pointing out additional
locations for inventory,

From the inventory of over 150 sites, nine individual structures
were selected for nomination to the National Register, mostly on the
basis of their significance within the county, Information and photo-
graphs on all sites are recorded on inventory forms for a permanent
record,

‘Survey Method



ISANTI COUNTY

Isanti County is located in the east-central part of Minnesota,
thirty miles north of the Minneapolis-St., Paul area and one hundred
miles southwest of Duluth., Chisago County borders to the east, Anoka
County to the south, Sherburne and Mille Lacs Counties to the west,
and Kanabec County to the north, The county boundaries follow the
straight lines of the government survey system,

The topography of the county varies from nearly level over
most of the area to rolling in the northern townships, and features
several small lakes and streams, The Rum River, the county's major
waterway, follows a meandering course.

Originally Isanti County lay within the southern limit of the
great pine forest of Minnesota. Today the cultivated fields covering
the county and scantily wooded pasture lands bear witness to the
dramatic transformation that has taken place since settlement. Only
scattered wooded areas in the northern tier of townships remain of
the once dense pine forest.

Area Description

The county shares with other Minnesota counties a history of
European exploration and fur trading activity and an early Indian
heritage. The earliest FEuro-Americans in the region are believed
to have been the French explorers Radisson and Grosseliers, who
traversed the area in the 1650s. They were followed by Father Hennepin
in 1680. At that time the area was the home of four Sioux tribes, known
as the Isanyati or Isantees,

When the Indian treaties of 1837 opened the lands between the St. Croix
and the Mississippi, the rich pine forests lured lumbermen to the area and
precipitated the first permanent white settlements in the county. Daniel
Stanchfield discovered the area's lumber potential on a trip to the area in
1847, and by 1852 over twenty logging firms were operating on the Rum River
within the county. Most of the early loggers were of American descent and
were responsible for many of the county's place names. Although the majority
were transients, the group included the county's first permanent settlers.

In the early 1850s a group of New Englanders, settled in the regions of
the Rum River in what became known as Spencer Brook. Another concentration of
Yankees was located along the banks of the Rum towards the eastern edge of
the county. Here the small settlement of Cambridge was founded to serve as
a post office and central place. It was platted in 1856, and became the
county seat when Isanti County was formed in 1857. As in other areas of the
state, the 1850s were characterized by a wave of speculative townsites,
most of which proved unsuccessful.

Isanti's speculative period was an unstable one, and little further
settlement occurred until land was opened up for homesteading in 1862, The
1860s began a new phase of county development as Swedish and German immigrants
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began to settle the region. Isanti County is noted as the area of
highest concentration of Swedish settlement in America. TImmigration
occurred in two waves, the first during the late 1860s and early
1870s and the second a decade later, The population filled in during
this period of immigration; the 1860 count of 284 had grown to 5,063
by 1880 and to 7,607 by 1890. By 1886 all of the townships were
organized and initial settlement had been completed,

Historically, the county might be characterized as a predominantly
agricultural region with strong ethnic concentrations. The absence
of towns is notable. Rather, settlement cores developed as service
areas for the surrounding rural community. Over twenty-three '"cross-
roads communities'" sprang up during the late nineteenth century.

Railroad trackage did not reach the county until 1899, but the
railroad's effects on county settlement date to the late 1860s when
odd numbered sections of government land were granted to the railroad
and offered for sale. The Lake Superior and Mississippi Railroad
launched on a major project to draw settlers to the county, extensively
circulating their propaganda in Sweden.

When the Eastern Railway Company (now the Great Northern) finally built

a line through eastern Isanti County in 1899, the region entered a new

phase of its development. The county did not experience the sudden boom in
population experienced in regions reached by railroads at earlier dates, but
the road brought considerable growth to the city of Cambridge, caused new

communities (Braham and Grandy) to be platted, and caused the village of

Isanti to move to its present trackside location. The railroad facilitated

trade and shipping for the county and established its trackside towns as
important centers for the rural population.

The county's basic layout has remained intact since the completion of
the railroad in 1899, Most of the county is rural, spotted with remnants

of the crossroads communities; often now consisting only of an empty

school, store, or a cluster of houses. The major population centers are all

located on the Great Northern Rail Line., In recent years the county's
proximity to the Minneapolis~St. Paul metropolitan area has assumed an

increasing importance., The southeastern part of the county (particularly

the cities of Cambridge and Isanti) has experienced new growth with the
influx of a commuter population.

The architecture of the county follows the typical building patterns
of other rural midwestern areas, The earliest Euro~American buildings were
of log, sod, or dugout construction. "These were replaced in later years by

simple frame structures of modest proportions and design. Wood is the
dominant construction material for both residential and agricultural
structures, Commercial buildings in the rural areas and the earliest
commercial buildings in the more populated centers are also of frame
construction. In the larger trackside communities masonry commercial
buildings dominate the business streetscape.

Buildings in Cambridge, Isanti, and Braham are situated on streets

Area Description - ea -

which follow a strict grid system. The buildings in the crossroad communities
and on the county's numerous farmsteads are usually oriented to county roads,

which follow the grid of section lines except where they bend to accommodate
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the contour of the topography.

.



ISANTI COUNTY

The significance of the area now known as Isanti County lies in
its continuous history as a predominantly rural agricultural region of
the state within the area of highest concentration of Swedish settle-
ment in America., As an area where ethnic concentrations have endured
and where agriculture has remained the county's economic base, the
county has a remarkably undisturbed historic fabric which provides a
valuable model for the study of immigrant settlement patterns and the
development of agriculture in east-central Minnesota.

The earliest permanent white settlements in the county were
made by native-born Americans who first engaged in lumbering and later
turned to farming when the forests were depleted. A notable structure
associated with the county's earliest settlement and its largest native-
born American population is Isanti School District No. I (1874, Spencer
Brook).

Area Significance

The Yankees who scantily populated the area in the 1850s were
followed by German and Swedish immigrants, who began arriving in the
early 1860s. St. John's German Lutheran Church (1882) Bradford Township)
is a well-preserved structure linked to the German population which settled
in southern parts of the county and made up the county's second largest
immigrant group. The Swedes who settled the region were by far the largest
and dominant ethnic group; Isanti's Swedish population is frequently noted
as the center of the more pietistic groups that broke off from the Swedish
State Church (Lutheran) and thus contrasts from the predominantly Swedish
Lutheran population of neighboring Chisago County., The Svenska Mission
Kyrka i Sodre Maple Ridge (1897, Maple Ridge Township) is significant for
its association with this large non-Lutheran Swedish population,

Agriculture has been an underlying theme in county development since
settlement, The Linden Barn (1914, Isanti Township) provides a link with the
Swedish population that farmed the county's rural areas, and is associated
with the county's important dairying industry. The Erickson Farmstead
(ca.l915, Athens Township) is a particularly handsome representative of a
brief but extremely prosperous period in the county's agriculture, the
potato boom of 1890-1920. Cooperatives were establsihed across the county
and have played crucial roles in the development of area agriculture. The
Farmers Mercantile Cooperative of West Stanford (1926, Stanford Township)
is representative of the organizations formed by area farmers to solve
economic problems.

In a rural county dominated by foreign immigrants rural education played
an important role in not only educating area children but also naturalizing
foreigners, The West Riverside School (1898, Cambridge Township), one of
the county's best preserved rural schools, represents the importance of
rural places of learning in the county's history.




Nineteenth century pre-railroad urban development was most extensive in

the county seat of Cambridge; the Isanti County Courthouse (1887,
Cambridge) continues to mark the city as the most important urban center
of the county, The limited additional urban settlement precipitated by
the 1899 rail construction is linked to the QOscar Olson House (1914,
Braham), the home of one of the community leaders of the new trackside
towns platted at the turn-of-the-century.

The buildings in the county are architecturally significant in that
they represent vernacular building trends in rural counties settled by
immigrant populations. Notable public and semi-public examples are
St. Johns Lutheran Church (1882, Bradford Township), the Svenska Mission
Kyrka i Sodre Maple Ridge (1897, Maple Ridge Township), and the West
Riverside School (1898, Cambridge Township). Agricultural buildings of
interest include the locally atypical but focal Linden Barn (1914,
Isanti Township), built on the round barn plan, and the more typical but
impressively scaled Erickson Farmstedd (ca.1915, Athens Township). Both
the home at the Erickson Farm and the Oscar Olson Home (1914, Braham)
are domestic structures notable for their conscious attention to design.

Area Significance - v -
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- As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the Natignal Register and certify that it lias been evaiuated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth b

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

Russell W, Fridley
title i ric P ervation Officer
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LAND OWNERSHIP BY CULTURE -
GROUPS IN ISANTI COUNTY, 1910' .

Miles

5, =

Land owned by:

Swedes

: Germans
- = g it Old Americans
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L Robert Clifford Ostergren, "Rattvik to Isanti: A Community Transplanted",
PhD Thesis, University of Minnesota, December, 1976, page 68,
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